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IRCLASS

\ SYSTEMS AND SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

Issued by indian Register Quality Systems
{A Division of IRELASS Systems and Solutions Private Limited)

This is to certify that the Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems of

Organisation;  Matienal Petroleum Services Co. (K.5.C.P) -
NAPESCO

Address:  P.0. Box 9801
61008, Huwait

has been assessed and found conforming to the following requirement
Standard: 150 45001:2018

Scope:  « Dl Field Services which Includes Gil Well
Cementing, Stimulation, Coiled Tubing,
Nitrogen Services, Down Hole Tool
Services

* Energy and Sustainable Development

Services such as HSE Consultancy,
Monitoring & Testing, Waste Management
of Hazardous & Non- Hazardous wastes,
Fire Fighting Equipments & Fire Alarm
Servicing/Maintenance and Halon

IRCLASS

\ SYSTEMS AND SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

Issued by Indian Register Quality Systems
(A Division of IRCLASS Systems and Solutions Private Limited)

This is 1o certify that the Quality Management Systems of

Organisati Mational Petroleum Services Co. (K.5.C.P) -
NAPESCO

Address:  P.O. Box 9801
61008, Kuwait

has been assessed and found conforming to the following requirement
Standard: 150 9001:2015

Scope: = Qil Field Services which includes Oil Well
Cementing, Stimulation, Coiled Tubing,
Nitrogen Services, Down Hole Tool
Services

« Energy and Sustainable Development

Services such as HSE Consultancy,
Monitoring & Testing, Waste Management
of Hazardous & Non- Hazardous wastes,
Fire Fighting Equipments & Fire Alarm
Servicing/Maintenance and Halon

Management
Certificate Mo.:  IRQS/18401245
Original Certification Date :  03/10/2018
Current Date of Granting :  03/10/2018
Expiry Date 02/10¢2021 L
Shashi Math Mishra
Head IROS
Fafuam dagiaes Chaslity Sbim
Thin Appeceval 1§ Sk et sathinsory Hewith and Sabe

Syihermy o She CEINTALON 10 the ABove SLaiar, which will e sersiornd by RS, Corcition Gusloar

Head Office: 524, Adi Shankarscharys Marg. Opp. Powal Lake, Powal Mumbial - 400 072 India

3

@ Thils is for Cersify thar the
Energy Management Sysiem
MAPESCD :
il of
National Petroleum Services Company (K.S.C.P) - NAPESCO
iiock 3, Sirvei 8, Fioi 7o, iniegraiion Road SEATG wiih MAas,
Shuaiba West Industrial Area, Mina Abdulla,
PO, Box 9801, Ahmadi 61008, KUWAIT

has been independently assessed and is compliant
with the requirements of

IS0 50001:2018
This Certificate is to the

*ruvision of Oil Field & Enerpy Serviees Related tn Cementing, Stimulation, Coiled Tubing, Nitrogen Servie.
Fracturing, Fishing, Down Hole Service Tools, Filiration, i Spill Response Management, Leak Detection «
Repair (LDAR) Services, E Impact & Envir auditing, Testing &
Maonitoring, HSE € v Serviees, Waste & NORM Services, Energy
Management Services, Marine Muinte Services, Analytical [ v & Testing,
Geo Technical & Sail Investigntian, Halon M. Fire System
Frocess Design & Enginecring, Supply of Industrinl Products & Services and Training

g product or service ranges:

Certificate No.: KWEYP62G

Dt ol initial registration 12 September 2020
Drate of this Certificane 12 Sepiember 2020
Surveillence audit on or before 11 September 2021

Management
Certificate No.:  IRQS/18101243
Original Certification Date :  03/10/2018
Current Date of Granting :  03/10/2018 =
Expiry Date : o 02/10/2021
@ N e
u Shashi Math Mishra
&‘[\\ Head IRQS
Tht appreval 4 tubjed - im agemens Syotema o s e the
e i, i il e e e By RS, Thoe v o the Acirecitation Mark et a2 re@Eaton W fesgedl 10 actvie:
dineiead try h CRPTRCAts with serreditation fe (0T] Condion Ouvesed LO SRR AL Ry DO

Head Office: 524, Adi Sharkaracharys Marg, Dpp. Powal Lake, Powai, Mumbai - 400 072, Indin

IRCLASS

‘ SYSTEMS AND SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

Bssued by Indian Register Quality Systems
(A Diviston of IRCLASS Systems and Solutions Private Limived)

This is to certify that the Envirenmental Management System of

Organisation:  Mational Petroleum Services Co. (K.5.C.P) -
NAPESCO

Address:  P.O, Box 9801
61008, Kuwait

has been assessed and found conforming to the following requirement
Standard: 150 14001: 2015

Scope: » Oil Field Services which includes Oil Well
Cementing, Stimulation, Colled Tubing,
Nitrogen Services, Down Hale Tool
Services

= Energy and Sustainable Development
Services such as HSE Consultancy,
Monitoring & Testing, Waste Management
of Hazardous & Non- Hazardous wastes,
Fire Fighting Equipments & Fire Alarm
Servicing/Maintenance and Halon
Management

Certificate No.:  IRQS/18301244
Original Certification Date :  03/10/2018

Current Date of Granting : 03/10/2018
-

NS
Shashi Nath Mishra
Head IRQS

Expiry Date 02002021

Head Offfce: 524, A4 Shankaracharya Marg, Opp. Powal Lake, Powal, Mumbai - 400 072, Indin.
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TO OUR

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen, respected Shareholders of National Petroleum Services Company

On behalf of members of the Board of Directors and the employees, | am pleased to welcome you and thank you for
your patronage. | am honored to present to you the Annual Report for the Financial Year ending as on December
31, 2020, which reflects the company's achievements in the oil, gas and environment sector.

It is no secret that the year 2020 was an exceptional year, we have all been affected by COVID-19. World's Economy
has suffered drastically, including the Oil and Gas industry. The effect that our country and the whole world has
experienced and are still going through, carry many global health and economic risks as a result of the impact of
the new Corona pandemic, which has negatively affected most business and trade activities in general, for example
travel, transportation, international movement of goods, shipping and manufacturing operations, and demand for
oil and gas in particular, and the consequent decline in oil prices significantly.

There is a possibility of continued economic slowdown for an extended period. The Corona pandemic coincided
with an increase in the number of players in the Oil Field Services sector, which resulted in a decline in our market
share. This necessitated that the company, under these circumstances take several exceptional measures to
ensure providing services at the highest quality. Some of the measures include diversifying suppliers, sourcing raw
materials at competitive prices, cost optimization while reconsidering the strategic plan.

We are also now developing ambitious plans to expand the company's business in order to achieve higher and
sustainable profitability on the basis of our capabilities and technical knowledge. This would include diversifying
sources of the income by adding new services and activities that the company could offer; and enhance our
presence and improve competitiveness in the oil and gas market.

We are progressing at a steady pace for regional expansion and to undertake international investments outside
State of Kuwait and in cooperation with international companies that are reputed and experienced in the type
of investments that we aim to undertake. Also, this will be by finding promising financial and risk balanced
investment opportunities that will enable us to enrich and diversify our services and lead us to provide integrated
services that serve the oil and gas sector and increase our market share considering the intense competitiveness
that characterizes it.

We hope to pass this crisis and current challenges with efficiency and competence while continuing to focus on
operational excellence with high efficiency, and this of course will only be with the help of the effort and sincerity
of our competent employees.

And let us show you the most prominent operational achievements during the year ending 12/31/2020:

- Kuwait Oil Company has awarded our company a contract for Hydraulic Fracturing, Coiled Tubing, Nitrogen
Pumping and related services, for a sum of KD 109,560,280/- for a period of five years, and this contract is considered
one of the largest contracts for oilfield services currently in Kuwait, which reflects the customer’s confidence in our
company.

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)

- Kuwait Oil Company has awarded our company a contract to provide HSE Services Manpower with Logistics
Support and related Instruments of KD 2,369,278 for a period of four years.

- The Joint Operations (Kuwait Gulf Oil Company and Saudi Arabian Chevron Company) awarded our company the
Environmental Services and Sludge Treatment (Hottpad) Contract for a sum of KD 7,739,923 for a period of five
years.

- The company received Purchase Orders from Kuwait Oil Company to Supply Float Equipment to support Drilling
Operations, amounting to KD 1,428,848/-.

We are pleased to provide you with a summary of the company's Financial Statements for the year ending
12/31/2020, which are as follows: -

- The Company achieved revenue from Sales & Services amounted to KD 26,755,330/- in 2020, compared with KD
35,158,527/-in 2019, a decrease of 23.9%.

- A Net Profit of KD 6,269,046/- was realized in 2020 (64.63 Fills per Share) compared with KD 11,372,863/- in 2019
(117.25 Fills per Share), a decrease of 44.8%.

- Shareholders’ Equity in 2020 amounted to KD 40,229,905/- compared with KD 40,752,774/-in 2019.

The Board of Directors recommended that 64% of the nominal share value (64 Fills per share) be distributed as
cash dividends to the shareholders for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2020, valued at KD 6,208,000/- which will be
distributed to registered shareholders on the day of claim, and has recommended KD 100,000/- as Board Member
Remuneration.

I would like to emphasize that we continue to exert utmost efforts to continue the pace of work and to continue the
achievements with the blessing of God, then with your support and encouragement, and the Board will continue to
set ambitious goals and implement thoughtful plans to achieve the aspirations of your company.

| extend my thanks and appreciation to the shareholders for their precious support and confidence that motivated
us to launch and compete to achieve the company's goals, aspirations and strategy, and to my colleagues, members
of the Board, for their precious guidance, wise vision and all employees for their sincere efforts, dedication to and
support towards the growth of the company.

C ==

Omran Habib Hayat
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Audit and Risk Management Committee’s Report Summary of Meetings of Audit and Risk Management Committee:
For the Year Ended on 31st December 2020
National Petroleum Services Company (K.S.C.P.)

No. of Meetings (4 meetings)

e Membership
Name Of member Position C|
Introduction: ass 16/2/20 | 5/7/20 | 5/8/20 | 28/10/20

The audit and risk management committee helps the board of directors perform its supervisory
responsibilitiesrelated tothe preparation of financial reports, internal audit systemsandriskmanagement
as well as audit processes and the corporate procedures related to control over compliance with laws,
rules and professional code of conduct.

Sheikh, Hamad Jaber Al-Sabah | Chairman | Independent | Present Present | Present | Present

Mr. Fahad Yacoub Al-Jouaan Member | Independent | Excused | Present | Present | Present
The committee is composed of (3) three members including two independent members. The committee

reviews accounting matters and important reports including unusual complicated transactions and
fields that imply discretionary judgments and professional and supervisory issues, understands their
impact on financial statements, expresses its opinion, makes recommendations to the board of directors
and reviews the audit findings with the company management and the external auditors including any
difficulties faced.

Mr. Menawer Anwar Al-Nouri Member |Non-Executive| Present Present Present Present

Mr. Sameh Al-Sayed Basha Secretary - Present | Present | Present | Present

The committee reviews the financial statements on periodical basis before submission thereof to the
board of directors and provides its opinion and recommendations in this regard to the board of directors
for the purpose of transparency and fairness of financial reports.

Internal Audit Rules

The board of directors approved the policies and processes manuals that cover all corporate activities and

management and state the corporate supervisory work and the corporate personnel responsibilities and Audit and Risk Management Committee
tasks. The audit and risk management committee of the board of directors follows up the execution of National Petroleum Services Company (K.S.C.P.)
such policies and processes. The committee regularly held its periodical meetings to manage and assess

the efficiency of internal audit systems. It also discussed the notes and reports filed to the committee

in accordance with the reporting route at different corporate departments to ensure dual control and

supervision.

The committee also held periodical meetings with the internal auditor and discussed the reports related
to different corporate departments. At those meetings, all audit notes made by the internal auditor were
discussed and the notes of previous years and responses to them were reviewed to identify the potential risk
aspects and obstacles ahead of the company and the significance thereof and attempt to avoid such risks
and check that different control functions of the corporate departments are properly established and that
human competences and necessary and proper control tools are available to provide for efficient internal
audit.

The audit and risk management committee also examines and approves the proposed plan of internal audit
and ensures proper execution thereof.

Correctness of Financial Statements and Reports

The audit and risk management committee performs its role of review and supervision on the external
auditor’s reports on the corporate annual and quarterly financial statements and meets with the auditors
before presentation of such reports to the board of directors to check the soundness of the corporate
financial statements and the independence and honesty of the external auditor whose opinion is still
independent and is enclosed with the corporate annual report.

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P) Annual Report 2020




Governance Report National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S. C.P.)
The fiscal year ending 31/12/2020
The extent of compliance with corporate governance rules during 2020

The National Petroleum Services Co. (K. S. C. P.) shall disclose the extent of its compliance with the
governance rules contained in Book Fifteenth (Corporate Governance) of the Executive Regulations
of Law No. 7 of 2010 issued regarding the establishment of the Capital Markets Authority and the
regulation of securities activities and their amendments, as follows:-

Building a balanced board

The first rule committed
structure

The second rule The proper c!efl'n!tlon of tasks committed
and responsibilities
Selection of qualified persons

The third rule for membershlp In the I'30ard committed
of Directors and Executive
Management

The fourth rule Ensure the integrity of financial committed

reports

Establishing sound risk
The fifth rule management and internal committed
control systems

Promote professional behavior

The sixth rule . committed
and ethical values

The seventh rule Accurate and timely disclosure committed
and transparency

The eights rule Respecting the rights of committed
shareholders

The ninth rule Bl I e committed
stakeholders

The tenth rule Enhance and improve committed
performance

The eleventh rule Focusing on the importance of committed

social responsibility

The first rule

building a balanced structure for the board of directors

The role of the Board of Directors represents the point of balance that works to achieve the goals of
the shareholders and follow up the executive management of the company and seeks to achieve the
company’s strategic goals by ensuring that the executive management carries out the tasks entrusted
to it to the fullest, and that it works to enhance the competitiveness of the company, and to achieve
high growth rates And work on what contributes to maximizing profits, and that the decisions and
procedures of the executive management are always in the interest of the shareholders in accordance

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)

with the articles of incorporation and the articles of association of the company and / or the companies

law, and from this standpoint was taken into account the diversity in the qualifications and practical and

scientific experiences of the members of the board of directors, which is reflected in the positive The

decisions taken by them ensure the quality of the strategic plans and the achievement of the desired

goals in accordance with best practices and the optimal adaptation of the company’s material and

human resources.

- First: Formation of the Board of Directors

Member
classification
(executive/  Academic qualification and work

Name . .
non-executive experience
/ independent),
secretary
Bachelor of Engineering and
Chairman Master of Business Administration
Mr. Omran Habib Hayat of Board of - experience in real estate
Directors development and corporate
management
Vice-Chairman Bachelor of Electrical Engineering
Mr. Khaled Hamdan Al-Saif and CEO - experience in the oil sector and
(Executive) corporate administration
Bachelor of Finance - experience
Member

Sheikh / Hamad Jaber Al-Sabah in accounting auditing and public
administration
Bachelor of Business
Administration and Finance
- experience in investment
management and public
administration

Bachelor of Business

(Independent)

Member

Mr. Ali Masoud Hayat .
(non-executive)

Member Administration - experience
Mr. Fahd Yacoub Al-Jouan (Independent) in public administration and
investment
Bachelor of Accounting
Mr. Munawer Anwar Al-Nouri Member' _ experler\ce " audltm.g,
(non-executive) accounting, and public

administration
Bachelor of Mechanical
Member Engineering - experience
(non-executive) in the oil sector and public
administration
Bachelor of Law - Diploma in
Commercial Arbitration - Diploma
in FIDIC Contract Arbitration and
BOT - ICA Certified Compliance
Officer - CCGO Certified Corporate
Governance Officer - Experience
in the Compliance and Legal
Affairs sector.

Mr. Muhaimin Ali Al-Bahbahani

Secretary of
Mr. Sameh Al-Sayed Pasha the Board of
Directors
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Date of

election /
appointment,
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18/06/2020

18/06/2020

18/06/2020

18/06/2020

18/06/2020

18/06/2020
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Directors

Vice-Chairman
and CEO

Mr. Khaled Hamdan Al-Saif

2

(Executive)

Member

(Independent)

Sheikh / Hamad Jaber Al-Sabah

3

Member

(non-executive)

Mr. Ali Masoud Hayat

4

Member

(Independent)

Mr. Fahd Yacoub Al-Jouan

5

Member

Mr. Munawer Anwar Al-Nouri

6

(non-executive)

Member

Excused

Mr. Muhaimin Ali Al-Bahbahani

7

(non-executive)

Secretary of

the Board of
Directors

Mr. Sameh Al-Sayed Pasha

8

«  Third: Requirements for registration, coordination, and keeping of the meeting minutes

The Secretary of the Board of Directors of the National Petroleum Services Co. (K. S. C. P.) applies the
requirements of registration, coordination, and keeping the minutes of the Board of Directors meeting
in line with the requirements of corporate governance by sending the meeting agenda and its
attachments three days before the date of the meeting or in a shorter period in emergency cases, the
secretary shall be Preparing minutes for each meeting held by the Board of Directors and submitting
it to the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors for approval, and the meeting agenda and
meeting minutes and its attachments are kept for each year in a file for that year. No person has the
right to view these minutes unless he is authorized to do so.

The second rule
proper definition of tasks and responsibilities

«  First: proper definition of responsibilities and tasks

The necessary measures have been taken to add the Board of Directors’ responsibilities, as stipulated in
the corporate governance requirements, specifically Clause 7-3 of Book XV.

The CEO and the Executive Management have been delegated specific powers in the power’s matrix,
which are reviewed and updated as necessary to comply with the regulatory authorities’ laws and the
company’s daily business.

« Second: the achievements of the Board of Directors

- The Board held 7 meetings during the fiscal year ending on 31/ 12/ 2020 to approve the quarterly
and annual financial statements and measure its strategic plan progress.

- Approving the annual estimated budget and the interim and annual financial statements.

- Ensuring the integrity of the Board of Directors’ disclosures under the approved disclosure and
transparency policies and systems.

- Follow up on the board of directors’ performance and the executive management through
performance indicators (KPlIs).

- Follow up on the committees’ meetings and decisions emanating from the board of directors and
their performance effectiveness.

- Preparing the corporate governance report according to the corporate governance scope issued by
the Capital Markets Authority to be read at the company’s annual general meeting.

+  Third: Forming committees emanating from the Board of Directors
Committees emanating from the company’s board of directors have been formed as 06 / 28 / 2020 for
three years. All documents related to board committee meetings are collected through the committee’s

secretary by sending them in an e-mail along with the meeting agenda or delivered manually before
the meeting Three days or a shorter period in emergency cases.
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+ Audit and Risk Management Committee:

The number of meetings
The status of membership inthe  that took place during
audit committee the fiscal year ending
12/31/2020

SL Name

Chairman of the committee from
1 Sheikh /Hamad Jaber Al-Sabah 6 /28 /2020 until 3 years from its

date.
Member of the committee from

2 Mr. Fahad Yacoub Al-Jouan 6 /28 / 2020 until 3 years from its 4
date.

Member of the committee from
3 Mr. Munawer Anwar Al-Nouri 6/ 28/ 2020 until 3 years from its
date.

According to the Audit Committee and Risk Management Regulations approved by the Board of
Directors, the committee’s tasks are summarized in assisting the Board in performing its obligations
concerning ensuring the integrity of financial reports and internal control systems and assisting the
Board of Directors in understanding and analyzing the risks facing the company’s activities and limiting
them under the corporate governance rules issued by Capital Markets Authority In addition to the
requirements of other regulatory authorities, the committee is also composed of two independent
board members and a non-executive member according to the above schedule.

The audit committee held 4 meetings, and among its achievements:

1- Reviewing the periodic financial statements and reports, discussed them with the concerned
executive management members, and expressed opinions, proposals, and recommendations
before submitting them to the Board of Directors in the external auditor’s presence.

2- Evaluate the adequacy of the applied internal control systems.

3- Supervise the Internal Audit Department and ensure its effective performance in implementing the
Board of Directors’ requirements.

4- Recommending to the Board of Directors to contract with Messrs Grant Thornton to perform the
internal audit work.

5- Reviewing and approving the internal audit plan that includes all departments and units of the
company.

6- Discuss the internal auditor’s reports and propose solutions to address any remarks (if any) and
correct the observations recorded on the company’s various departments.

7- Reviewing the report on the internal control systems (making the necessary proposals to the
executive management and submitting the matter to the board of directors for viewing and
expressing an opinion.)

8- Recommending to the Board of directors to appoint/reappoint the external auditor, determine his
fees, and ensure his independence.

9- Viewing the company’s risk register.

10- Viewing the risk assessment report and recommending any necessary measures to be taken if
necessary.

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)

«  Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The number of meetings
The status of membership inthe  that took place during
SL Name . . .
audit committee the fiscal year ending
12/31/2020
Chairman of the committee from

1 Mr. Muhaimin Ali Al-Bahbahani 6 /28 /2020 until 3 years from its

date.
Member of the committee from

2 Mr. Ali Masoud Hayat 6 /28 /2020 until 3 years from its 2
date.

Member of the committee from
3 Sheikh /Hamad Jaber Al-Sabah 6 /28 / 2020 until 3 years from its
date.

According to the bylaw of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee approved by the Board of
Directors, the committee’s tasks are summarized in preparing recommendations for the policies and
regulations governing the awarding of compensation and bonuses in implementation of the corporate
governance rules issued by the Capital Markets Authority In addition to the requirements of other
regulatory authorities.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings, and its achievements are:

1. Recommendation to reimburse the members of the Board of Directors in an amount of 100,000
thousand Kuwaiti dinars from the net profit for the year ending 12 /31 /2020

2. There is no need to grant remuneration to the committee members emanating from the board of
directors and only to reward the board of directors.

3. Recommending that the executive management be granted bonuses for the fiscal year ending on
31/12/2020. And that is as follows:

«  Chief Executive Officer: a remuneration of 156,726 Kuwaiti dinars from the net profits.

«  Deputy Director-General for Financial Affairs: a reward of 7,000 Kuwaiti dinars.

The third rule
Selection of qualified persons for membership in the Board of Directors and executive management.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works to assist the Board of Directors and the
Executive Management to ensure the selection of competencies appropriate to the vision of the Board
of Directors of the Company to fill these positions. The Audit Committee and the Risk Committee’s
recommendations are also taken into account regarding potential candidates for the Director of the
Internal Audit Department position and Director of Risk Management position.
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Accordingtotheinternal regulations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,amechanismand
the amounts of bonuses and increases are studied and determined under the articles of incorporation,
the articles of association of the company and within the framework of permissible according to the
Companies Law and related laws for members of the Board of Directors and the status of the Kuwait
market in a way that guarantees equality within the company for all employees.

The fourth rule
Ensuring the integrity of financial reports

«  First: Financial reporting pledges.

The members of the Board of Directors and the executive management are keen to ensure the integrity
and integrity of the financial reports that are reflected in the company’s credibility in presenting its
financial position, which increases the confidence of the current shareholders and any future investor
in the data and information provided by the company.

You will find in Attachment No. (1) to this report the written declarations stating that the data contained
in the financial reports have been prepared following international accounting standards approved by
the Capital Markets Authority, and it includes a presentation of all the financial aspects of the company
in terms of operational data and results and that the data of this report have been presented. Properly
and fairly.

« Second:Thereis no conflict between the audit committee’s recommendations and the decisions
of the board of directors.

« Third: The Audit Committee and members of the Board of Directors affirm the external auditor’s
independence and impartiality.

The company’s external auditor is appointed/reappointed in the ordinary general assembly meeting
based on the proposal of the Board of Directors, where the audit committee makes recommendations
to the Board of Directors first Appointing / reappointing the auditor after ensuring his independence
from the company and the company’s board of directors, and ensuring that he does not perform
additional work for the company that is not included in the audit work or any work that may affect his
independence and neutrality.

The Fifth Rule
Establishing sound systems for risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors declares that the full responsibilities are for the internal control system for
the National Petroleum Services Co. (K. S. C. P.) and Risk Management Company, while the Executive
Management's role is to implement the policies approved for this by the Board of Directors.

The Internal Audit Department verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control from
operations and financial and legal compliance by integrating procedural and transitional auditing work.
A summary of the material notes is determined in addition to any business plan determined by the
management every three months before the audit committee emanating from the board of directors
for review and guidance.

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)

An independent external office has been contracted with (Grant Thornton) to carry out the internal
audit functions and support the company's internal audit department. Through this contract, internal
audit reports are prepared on the operations of the company’s departments and units, including
observations and the resulting impact (if any), recommendations of the office, departmental responses,
etc. Measures must be taken to change the system and avoid any risks that may result from failure to
make the necessary adjustments, provided that these reports are presented to the audit committee
for recommendations. Also, the subordination of risk management and the internal audit department
directly to the audit committee and risk management.

The company also contracted with the Bikertelly office to prepare an ICR assessment and review report
for the fiscal year ending 12/ 31/ 2020, and it will be presented to the audit committee and the board
of directors to be submitted to the Capital Markets Authority.

The sixth rule
Promoting professional behavior and ethical values

«  First: the working charter

Upon assuming their duties, all employees of the National Petroleum Services Co. (K. S. C. P.) and its
board of directors shall sign a professional charter that includes the standards and behaviors that must
be adhered to during their period of work. The rules and standards of professional behavior approved
by the Board of Directors of the company aim to provide support concerning ethical issues and how
to deal with them to reduce operational risks that may arise and to create a clear work environment
characterized by integrity and transparency, and all employees of the company must adhere to them.

«  Second: Policies and mechanisms for limiting conflicts of interest

The members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management are responsible for adhering
to the company’s policy approved on 06 / 30 / 2016, and the Secretary of the Board of Directors is
responsible for following up the procedures for implementing this policy and keeping copies of the
interest disclosure forms and updating the related register on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Some responsibilities of board members:

1. The Board of Directors assumes full responsibility for implementing appropriate standards and
mechanisms to avoid or limit conflicts of interest

2. A member of the board of directors shall disclose to the board of directors any common interests
he has with the company, whether directly or indirectly, provided that he reports during the year.
It is not permissible for a member of the board of directors with interest to participate in voting on
the decision issued in this regard.

3. A member of the Board of Directors shall refrain from participating in any discussion or voting to
take any decision related to any dealings, business, or contracts that may involve a direct or indirect
interest affecting his ability and independence to express his opinion or assume the tasks assigned
to him.
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Some responsibilities of executive management:

1. Members of the executive management refrain from participating in any decisions or tasks that
involve any common interests with the company, whether directly or indirectly, which may
negatively affect their ability to undertake the tasks assigned to them in a manner that guarantees
the achievement of the company’s interests. This policy.

2. Members of the executive management are obligated not to carry out any work for external parties,
whether paid or unpaid, without obtaining the prior approval of the company’s board of directors
and after verifying that these actions will not lead to a conflict-of-interest situation that affects his
ability to undertake the tasks assigned to him.

The seventh rule
accurate and timely disclosure and transparency

«  First: Mechanisms for accurate presentation and disclosure, and disclosures by the Board of Di-
rectors and executive management

Each member of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management must disclose to the company
all his interests and relationships that may affect his ability to undertake the tasks assigned to him upon
his appointment to the company, and all the interests disclosed must be recorded in a special register
that the Secretary of the Board keeps.

Members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management must review and update the
disclosure form on an annual basis and immediately disclose any changes that could lead to the
occurrence of any conflict-of-interest situations.

Disclosure of members of the Board of Directors and the executive management of common interests
with the company should include the following:

1. Job positions in companies or other entities.
2. Membership in the boards of other companies.

3. Owningshares, directly orindirectly, in any company that is a customer, competitor, or main supplier
of the company or any of the parties that may deal with the company in any other way.

4. The relationship of kinship up to the second degree with any of the board of directors or the
executive management of the main bodies with which the company deals.

5. Any other interests that may be considered related to the assigned tasks as members of the Board
of Directors.

The Board of Directors periodically reviews the following:
1-  Any changes in the disclosure of conflict-of-interest cases.

2- Any conflicts of interest that arose or were disclosed, in addition to a summary explaining the
measures taken in this regard.

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)

All conflict-of-interest cases in which the executive management is a party must be reported to the
board secretary, who submits them to the board of directors, and cases of common conflict of interest
with the company, whether directly or indirectly, are recorded in the annual report for that.

« Second: Investor Relations
The company has an Investor Relations unit that aims to:

1- Establish consistent and reliable communication channels with investors and introduce investors to
the company’s performance.

2- Provide financial and non-financial information related to the company or the company’s share
to the Board of Directors, the Executive Management, and the shareholders in line with the
implementation of the Capital Markets and Companies Authority laws and regulations.

3- Guideonkeyissues such asformulating the company’s mission to currentand potential shareholders
and the financial community, circulating news and events, timing and content of disclosures,
financial directives, and shareholder relations.

« Third: Developing the information technology infrastructure and relying heavily on it in disclo-
sure processes

The company is still studying the possibility of developing a program for disclosures to facilitate this
process and comply with the corporate governance rules issued by the Capital Markets Authority.

The eighth rule
Respect the rights of shareholders

«  First: Shareholders’ rights

The company is obligated to ensure that all shareholders exercise their rights fairly and that they are
not violated or misused by the company’s management, members of the board of directors, or major
shareholders, including:

1. A clear mechanism for attending the ordinary and extraordinary general assembly meetings
determined by the company’s statute within the framework of the Companies Law and related laws.

2. Shareholders are allowed to hold the board of directors accountable for the tasks assigned to them.
3. Obtaining the share determined in the distribution of profits.

4, Participating in the shareholders ‘general assembly meetings and voting on its decisions, and
ensuring that the shareholder obtains - at least seven days before the general assembly meeting
- the financial statements for the elapsed financial period, as well as the report of the board of
directors and the auditor’s report.

5. Obtaining a share of the company’s assets in case of liquidation.

The company also encourages all its shareholders to vote on all decisions taken by the general assembly,
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« Second: The Register of Shareholders

The company maintains an updated copy of the register of shareholders kept with the Kuwaiti Clearing
Company, and the company is keen to ensure that all data that is kept in the shareholders 'register
are confidential and can only be accessed by authorized employees. The company also allows its
shareholders to see the Register of shareholders.

The ninth rule
Recognizing the role of stakeholders

The supervisory and supervisory role of the company’s board of directors is one of the most important
components of an effective governance framework, as the company has policies that ensure the
protection of the rights of stakeholders. Therefore, the Board of Directors assumes the primary
responsibility for protecting stakeholders’ rights and in all its dealings. Policies include:

«  Amechanism for settling any complaints that may arise between the company and the stakeholders.

« That is, dealing with the board of directors and stakeholders is on uniform terms without any
discrimination or preference.

« Allowing information stakeholders and their quick and regular access to information and data
related to the tasks assigned to them can obtain those.

«  Reporting to the Board of Directors of any improper practices they are exposed to by the company
while providing appropriate protection to the parties’ reports.

The Tenth rule
Enhancing and improving performance

The annual evaluation of the members of the Board of Directors has been approved, and the company
annually evaluates the performance of all members of the executive management.

Members of the Board of Directors review the management reports, risk management reports, and
internal audits quarterly to evaluate its performance.

The Eleventh rule
Focus on the importance of social responsibility

The company is committed to contributing positively to the society in which it operates through the
following:

+  Helping to provide new job opportunities to absorb the community’s workforce and create
appropriate conditions for them.

« Focusing on supporting and encouraging the Kuwaiti national workforce and improving their
competitive efficiency.

« Actively taking into account the general interests of society and economic development when
making important decisions.

«  Protect the environment from pollution or other environmental damage.

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)

Encouraging and reinforcing positive ethical behaviors and undertaking charitable and volunteer
initiatives.

Please consider the social impact of the services/products, including the impact of withdrawing
them, prompt response to them, respecting and adhering to applicable laws and regulations.

The company allocated 1% of the net profits for the fiscal year ending 12 /31 / 2020 for donation
For charitable organizations through the Foundation for Good Projects.

Designing the company’s activities in line with the economic situation and the cultural situation of
the society.

Providing training programs to develop the capabilities of targeted groups in society.
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Commercial Registration No.:
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Date Listed on the KS E:
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Tel.:

Fax:

Website:

Authorized Capital:

Paid Up:

Nominal Value of the Share:

Auditor

Address:
P.O.Box:
Tel.:
Fax:

Email:

National Petroleum Services Company (K.S.C.P)
49911 dated 28 March 1993

3 of January 1993

18™ of October 2003

Shuaibah Industrial Area, Blk 3, St. 6, Plot 76
9801 Ahmadi 61008 Kuwait

+965 2225 1000

+965 2225 1010

WWW.Nnapesco.com

10,000,000 KD

10,000,000 KD

100 Fils

EY

Al Aiban, Al Osaimi & Partners
ERNST & YOUNG

Safat Square Bool, Kuwait, 18-21% Floor, Baitak Tower, Ahmed Al-Jaber St.
74 Safat 13001 Kuwait

+965 2295 5000

+965 2245 6419

kuwait@kw.ey.com - ey.com/mena - www.ey.com/me
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sIRCLASS

SYSTEMS AND SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

Issued by Indian Register Quality Systems
(A Diviston of IRCLASS Systems and Solutions Private Limited)

This is to certify that the Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems of

Organisation:  Matienal Petroleum Services Co. (K.5.C.P) -
NAPESCO

Address:  P.0. Box 9801
61008, Kuwait

has been assessed and found conforming to the following requirement
Standard: 150 45001:2018

Scope:  « Dil Field Services which Includes il Well
Cementing, Stimulation, Coiled Tubing,
Nitrogen Services, Down Hole Tool
Services

+ Energy and Sustainable Development
Services such as HSE Consultancy,
Monitaring & Testing, Waste Management
of Hazardous & Non- Hazardous wastes,
Fire Fighting Equipments & Fire Alarm
Servicing/Maintenance and Halon
Management

Certificate No.:  IRQS/18401245
Original Certification Date :  03/10/2018

Current Date of Granting @ 03/10/2018

Expiry Date T 02102021 s
Shashi Math Mishra
Head IROS

faisn tagiase asiity Sritems

Thén el 13 Sobliptt Lo continee sathinctony mumbenance of e Oxtugstional Nesth and Safesy Managornent
St of She OrEMTALOn 10 the above Wnmciand, which wil e sonstored by ROE. Coneition Overleal

Head Office: 514, Adi Shankarscharya Marg.Opp, Powal Lake, Powal Membal - 400 072 India

@ This s do Certify thar the

Energy Management Sysiem
MAFESCO .
) of
National Petroleum Services Company (K.S.C.P) - NAPESCO

Shuaiba West Industrial Area, Mina Abdulla,
PO, Box 9801, Ahmadi 61008, KUWAIT

has been independently assessed and is compliant
with the requirements of

IS0 50001:2018

This Certificate is applicable to the following product or service ranges:

*rovision of Ol Fiehd & Encrgy Services Reluted o Cementing, Stimulation, Coiled Tubing, Nitrogen Servie
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This is to certify that the Quality Management Systems of

Organisation:  Mational Petroleum Services Co. (K.5.C.P) -
NAPESCO

Address:  P.O. Box 9801
G1008, Kuwait

has been assessed and found conforming to the following requirement
Standard: 150 9001:2015

Scope: = Oil Field Services which includes 01l Well
Cementing, Stimulation, Colled Tubing,
Mitrogen Services, Down Hole Tool
Services

« Energy and Sustainable Development
Services such as HSE Consultancy,
Monitoring & Testing, Waste Management
of Hazardous & Non- Hazardous wastes,
Fire Fighting Equipments & Fire Alarm
Servicing/Maintenance and Halon
Management
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SYSTEMS AND SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

fssued by Indian Register Quality Systems
(A Diviston of IRCLASS Systems and Solutions Private Limited)

This s to certify that the Environmental Management System of

Organisation:  Mational Petroleum Services Co. (K.5.C.P) -
NAPESCO

Address:  P.0O. Box 9801
61008, Kuwait

has been assessed and found conforming to the following requirement
Standard: IS0 14001: 2015

Scope: = Oil Field Services which includes Oil Well
Cementing, Stimulation, Coiled Tubing,
Nitrogen Services, Down Hole Tool
Services

= Energy and Sustainable Development
Services such as HSE Consultancy,
Monitoring & Testing, Waste Management
of Hazardous & Non- Hazardous wastes,
Fire Fighting Equipments & Fire Alarm
Servicing/Maintenance and Halon
Management

Certificate No.:  IRQS/18301244
Original Certification Date :  03/10/2018
Current Date of Granting :  03/10/2018
-

Expiry Date : 021072021 == ]

(.:- \"\\mﬁk
Shashi Nath Mishra

Head IRQS

COMPANY NAME

ENSERVE ENGG PVT LTD

MEKE DENIZ TEMIZLIGI LTD.SERVICES

FILTERS S.R.L

BABCOCK VALVES S.A.

YANTAI JEREH OILFIELD SERVICES GROUP CO.

PROCESS S.R.L.

ARGENTECH SOLUTIONS INC.

COLOMBO DOCKYARD PLC

BLUTEKS.R.L.

YANJIAN INETRNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT CO.
LTD.

ALPHAMERS LTD.

REMEDX REMEDIATION SERVICES

FRANCISCO CARDAMA, S.A.

MS INDUSTRIAL SERVICES LIMITED

IRES- GEO TECHNOLOGY LTD.

JIANGSU JIANGBEI SHINBBING COMBANY LTD

SLEDGE HAMMER OIL TOOLS PVT. LTD.

COMPASS DIRECTIONAL SERVICES LTD

NATIONAL OILWELL VARCO LP

HELMERICH & PAYNE INTERNATIONAL DRILLING CO

COUNTRY OF
ORIGIN

SOUTH AFRICA

TURKEY

ITALY

SPAIN

CHINA

ITALY

USA

SRILANKA

ITALY

CHINA

INDIA

CANADA

SPAIN

UK

UK

CHINA

INDIA

CANADA

USA

USA

SERVICES

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIRING, EMISSION MONI-
TORING

OIL SPILL CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT

PROCESS FILTERS

MECHANICAL VALVES

EPC & SOIL REMEDIATION

THIRD PARTY INSPECTION SERVICES

DRONES AND IMAGING SERVICES

SHIP BUILDING AND SHIP REPAIR SERVCIES

INSTRUMENT AIR AND NITROGEN SYSTEMS

BUILDING WORKS & CIVIL WORKS CONTRACTS

OIL SPILL RESPONSE AND MANAGEMENT

SOIL REMEDIATION SERVICES

BUSINESS OF SHIPBUILDING AND SHOP REPAIRING

ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION, NORM MANAGE-
MENT

4D GEOPHYSICAL RESERVOIR MONITORING SERVICES

AN AGENT FOR OIL SHIP MAINTENANCE SERVICES

FLOAT EQUIPMENT & CASING HARDWARE

DIRECTIONAL DRILLING SERVICES

DRILLING FLUIDS SERVICES

SUPPLY OF DEEP & DEV. DRILLING RIGS
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KUWAIT OIL COMPANY
(APPROVED AS CONTRACTOR)

SURFACE WELL TESTING FACILITIES - LOCAL COM-
PANIES

SLICK LINE SERVICES - LOCAL CONTRACTORS
COMPREHENSIVE MAINTENANCE OF FIRE FIGHT-
ING SYSTEMS

ENVIRONMENT CONSULTANCY SERVICES

HEALTH CONSULTANCY SERVICES

SAFETY CONSULTANCY SERVICES

WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES
ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING SERVICES

SUPPLY OF EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES FOR TUBU-
LAR CLEANING, LINING (DOULINE-20 OR EQUIVA-
LENT) & OTHER ASSOCIATED SERVICES

SOIL REMEDIATION

OBM CUTTING TREATMENT

CEMENTING AND ASSOCIATED SERVICES
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT "EIA"
STUDIES (ABOVE 1 MILLION KD)

LABORATORY ANALYTICAL SERVICES FOR SOIL,
OIL AND WATER (SOW)

LOCAL RECRUITMENT COMPANIES/AGENCIES
COILED TUBING & ASSOCIATED SERVICES
SERVICES FOR TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY, SOIL INVES-
TIGATION AND SLIT TRENCHING WORKS
CONSULTANCY SERVICES FOR PROCESS SAFETY
MANAGMENT STUIDIES

JOINT OPERATIONS- WAFRA
(APPROVED BY PROJECT)

OILY VISCOUS LIQUID TREATMENT
FIRE ALARM AND FIRE FIGHTING SYSTEM, DESIGN
SURVEY AND ASSESSMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANCY & MONITORING
SAFETY CONSULTANCY

CONSULTANCY SERVICES FOR FIRE PROTECTION
SYSTEM

WELL TESTING SERVICES

WASTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

ENGINEERING & RISK ASSESSMENT SERVICES
ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION AND EARTH
MOVING WORKS

ANALYTICAL LABORATORY SERVICES

PETROCHEMICAL INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(APPROVED BY PROJECT)

LEED CONSULTANCY

ONLINE LABORATORY MAINTENANCE SERVICES
MANPOWER SUPPLY

FIRE FIGHTING & FIRE ALARM MAINTENANCE SER-
VICES

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)

KUWAIT NATIONAL PETROLEUM COMPANY

APPROVED AS CONTRACTOR

SURVEYING AND SOIL INVESTIGATION
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF SLUDGE HAN-
DLING

MAINTENANCE OF ON-LINE AND LABORATORY
ANALYZERS

FIRE SUPPRESSION AGENT AND SYSTEMS INSTAL-
LATION

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT STUDY)
QUANTITATIVE RISK ASSESSMENT (QRA) STUDIES)
INDUSTRIAL HYGIENE

SAFETY AND FIRE (HAZOP ASSESSMENT)
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

FIRE ALARM & FIRE FIGHTING SYSTEM, DESIGN
SURVEY & ASSESSMENT

LEAK DETECTION SERVICES

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING AND LABORA-
TORY SERVICES

OIL SPILL RESPONSE SERVICES Partnership

JOINT OPERATIONS- KHAFJI
(APPROVED BY PROJECT)

ASBESTOS CONSULTANCY

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANCY

INDOOR AIR QUALITY SERVICES

STACK EMISSION MONITORING SERVICES

CRUDE OILY SLUDGE TREATMENT

HYDROCARBON CONTAMINATED SOIL TREAT-
MENT

SEISMIC DATA INTERPRETATION & QUALITY CON-
TROL

ENVIRONMENT PUBLIC AUTHORITY

ENVIRONMENTAL AUDITING

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTATIONS

THE ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
EVALUATION OF EXISTING ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS
MERCURY CONTAMINATED SOIL TREATMENT
HALON MANAGEMENT SERVICES

KUWAIT FIRE SERVICE DIRECTORATE NIPPON KALJI KYOKAI

HALON MANAGEMENT SERVICES *  APPROVED AS A FIRM ENGAGED IN SURVEYS AND
MAINTENANCE OF FIRE EXTINGUISHER EQUIP-
MENT AND SYSTEMS & SELF CONTAINED BREATH-
ING APPARATUS

MINISTRY OF ELECTRICITY & WATER MINISTRY OF HEALTH

«  ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTATIONS SERVICES RADIATION NORM SERVICES
SOIL INVESTIGATION

1ISO 9001 :2015
QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

MINISTRY OF COMMUNICATIONS
MARINE MAINTENANCE

ISO 14001 : 2015

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING SERVICES
INCLUDING LABORATORY TESTING OF WATER,
SOIL AND AIR SAMPLES AND EIA

LLOYD'S REGISTER

*  SURVEY AND MAINTENANCE OF FIRE EXTINGUISH-
ERS & SYSTEMS

DNV

SURVEY AND MAINTENANCE OF FIRE EXTINGUISH-
ERS & SYSTEMS

ISO 17025 :2005
TESTING LABORATORY TL-490

U.S.-DOT

e PRESSURIZED CYLINDER RETESTER'S IDENTIFICA-
TION NUMBER

1ISO 45001-2018
HEALTH & SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

BUREAU VERITAS 1ISO 50001:2018

INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF FIRE EXTIN- e ENERGY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
GUISHING/FIRE DETECTION EQUIPMENT AND SYS-
TEM ABOARD SHIPS OR MOBILE OFFSHORE UNITS
INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF SELF CON-

TAINED BREATHING APPARATUS ABOARD SHIPS
OR MOBILE OFFSHORE UNITS
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National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)

31 DECEMBER 2020

Ernst & Young Tel: +965 2 295 5000
Al Aiban, Al Osaimi & Partners Fax: +965 2 245 6419
P.O.Box 74 kuwait@kw.ey.com

— 18-20th Floor, Baitak Tower ey.com/
Buildinga b r y.com/mena
wearking s Ahmed Al Jaber Street

Safat Square 13001, Kuwait

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATIONAL
PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY K.S.C.P.

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of National Petroleum Services Company
K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATIONAL
PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

D?ecognition and measurement of revenue ‘:l

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at point in time when control of the goods is transferred to
the customer and in case of revenue from services, over the time when the services are rendered.
Revenue for individual jobs is measured based on the contractual terms and master agreements that are
agreed with customers relating to oil field services and non-oil ficld services.

Revenue is recognised as performance obligations are satisfied.

Due to the multi-element nature of such jobs involving supply of goods, which are of specialised nature,
and rendering of services that comprise supply of manpower and equipment usage charges, there is a
significant risk of misstatement in the recognition and measurement of revenue. we considered this as
a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures, among others, included assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s revenue
recognition accounting policies and compliance with those policies. Further, we performed test of
details by verifying the revenue recognised to the underlying contracts, master agreements and records
supporting delivery of goods and services rendered, including identification of performance obligations
within each contract, testing of timing and selection of progress measures for revenue recognition and
cut-off procedures. We also performed substantive analytical review which included a detailed
comparison of revenue and gross profit margin with the previous year and budgets as well as product-
wise detailed analysis.

The accounting policy and the related disclosures for revenue recognition are set out in Notes 3 and 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

[ Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables and contract assets ]

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables and contract assets amounted to KD 14,297,308,
representing 29.58% of total assets. The Group has applied the simplified approach under IFRS 9:
‘Financial Instruments’ (“IFRS 97) to measure ECL on trade receivables, which allows for lifetime
ECL to be recognised from initial recognition of the trade receivables. The Group determines the
ECL on trade receivables by using a provision matrix that is based on historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the individual debtors and the economic environment.
Due to the significance of trade receivables and contract assets and the complexity involved in the
ECL calculation, this was considered as a key audit matter.

As part of our audit procedures, we have assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions used in the
ECL methodology by comparing them with historical data adjusted for current market conditions and
forward-looking information, including Covid-19 impact. Further, in order to evaluate the
appropriateness of management judgements, we verified, on a sample basis, the customers’ historical
payment patterns and whether any post year-end payments had been received up to the date of
completing our audit procedures. We also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
relating to ECL, management’s assessment of the credit risk and their responses to such risks in Note
8 and Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATIONAL
PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Other Information included in the Group’s 2020 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information
included in the Group’s 2020 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, prior to
the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Group’s Annual
Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Fi inancial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATIONAL
PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

v Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

v Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

v Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activitics within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATIONAL
PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the
consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s
Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith.
We further report that we obtained all the information and explanations that we required for the
purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements incorporate all information that is
required by the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016, as amended, and its executive regulation, as amended,
and by the Parent Company's Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as
amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no
violations of the Companies Law No. 1 0f 2016, as amended, and its executive regulation, as amended,
nor of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as
amended, have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2020 that might have had a material
effect on the business of the Parent Company or on its financial position.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any material
violations of the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010 concerning the Capital Markets Authority and its
related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2020 that might have had a material effect on
the business of the Parent Company or on its financial position.

BADER A. AL-ABDULJADER
LICENCE NO. 207 A

EY

(AL-AIBAN, AL-OSAIMI & PARTNERS)

23 March 2021
Kuwait
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National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INOOME
As at 31 DECEMBER 2020 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
2020 2019 2020 2019
Notes KD KD Notes KD KD
ASSETS
Non-current assets Sales and services revenue 20 26,755,330 35,158,527
Property, plant and equipment 5 10,214,560 11,185,207 Cost of sales and services rendered (18,541,736) (21,622,118)
Right-of-use assets 415,907 355,032
GROSS PROFIT 8,213,594 13,536,409
10,630,467 11,540,239
Interest income 373,041 281,062
Currenit assets Net investments income (loss) 21 35,639 (168,243)
Inventories 6 5,022,820 3,943,510 Other income S 66,488 297,254
Trade receivables and contract assets 8 14,297,308 11,486,215 General and administrative expenses 22 (2,002,685) (1,822,045)
Prepayments and other receivables 9 2,910,461 1,720,412
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10 936,073 1,083,316 PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6,686,077 12,124,437
Term deposits 11 12,500,000 15,912,000 Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences
Bank balances and cash 12 2,040,437 2,521,780 (KFAS) (66,861) (129,832)
National Labour Support Tax (NLST) (178,693) (315,530)
37,707,099 36,667,233 Zakat (71,477) (126,212)
Di ’ i 1 1
TOTAL ASSETS 48,337,566 48,207,472 irectors’ remuneration (100,000) (180,000)
6,269,046 11,372,863
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Equity {6.050/600 Other comprehensive loss
Share capital 13 10,000,000 Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Share premium 14 3,310,705 3,310,705 in subsequent periods:
B 4,461) (654,461) quent b : . . .
Treasury shares 15 (654, 2 Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1,915) -
Treasury shares reserve 15 33’8;_2 ; ség,ggg
Statutory reserve 16 5,858,8 ,858, .
Vol t{yary st 17 5,858,895 5,858,895 Other comprehensive loss for the year (1,915) _
Foreign currency translation reserve 6,503 8,418
Rétained sartings 15,815,530 16,336,482 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 6,267,131 11,372,863
g=
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company 40,229,892 40,752,759 Profit attributable to:
Non-controlling interests 13 1 Equity holders of the Parent Company 6,269,048 11,372,866
Total equity 40,229,905 40,752,774 Non-controlling interests ) (3)
6,269,046 11,372,863
Non-current liabilities
Employees’ end of service benefits 18 2,916,540 2,626,535
Lease liabilities 154,406 138,870 Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company 6,267,133 11,372,866
3,070,946 2,765,405 Non-controlling interests () 3)
Current liabilities 6.267.131 11372.863
Accounts payable and accruals 19 4,760,346 4,463,839 ,20'/, 212,
Lease liabilities 276,369 225,454
. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
2 ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
5,996,715 i COMPANY 23 64.63 fils 117.25 fils
Total liabilities 8,107,661 7,454,698
TOTAL EQUITY A LIABILITIES 48,337,566 48,207,472
’ . 7/
vl
'\/‘; Z2sdy
Onifan-Habib Jawhgr Hayat Khaled/Hamdan Al Saif
Chairman i Vice Chairman and CEQO
The attached notes 46 to 77 form part of these consolidated financial statements The attached notes 46 to 77 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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g 2 = g g < o8 g National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
§ a f,*: lé g: g\" :’ O:f g. :frm :f CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
I g 3¢ g 3 mg T|E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
n == <5
& . 2020 2019
s Q o] s @ S Notes KD KD
£%a = . = OPERATING ACTIVITIES
§ § < S % Profit before tax and after directors’ remuneration 6,586,077 11,944,437
é = Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Z, Depreciation expense 5 2,124,989 2,032,797
o wS | e = R Depreciation of right-of-use assets 353,959 260,375
3 2 8|8 Q § S 5 g Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 5 (24,045) (19,323)
38 & B&|& ¥ oo dla Income from governments grants 7 (428,287) -
S X = A N ~ >~ X ~ | .
S Sr; g | g T 0% i Allowance for expected credit losses 8 106,006 60,000
- =2 ¥ Dividend income 21 31,272) (100,671)
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The attached notes 46 to 77 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company’’)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 were authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors on 23 March 2021, and the
shareholders have the power to amend these consolidated financial statements at the annual general assembly
meeting (“AGM”).

The Parent Company is as a Kuwaiti shareholding Company incorporated on 3 January 1993 and whose shares are
publicly traded on Boursa Kuwait. The Parent Company is a subsidiary of Qurain Petrochemical Industries
Company K.S.C.P. (the “Ultimate Parent Company”’) The Parent Company is located at Shuaiba Industrial Area,
Al-Ahmadi, Plot 3 and its registered postal address is P.O. Box 9801, 61008, Kuwait.

The Parent Company’s primary objectives are, as follows:

Performing all support services for wells drilling, repairing and preparation for production as well as wells
maintenance related services.

Establishing industrial firms for the purpose of manufacturing and producing the equipment and materials
necessary for achieving such objectives after obtaining the approval of the competent authorities.

Importing and owning machines, tools and materials necessary for achieving its objectives.

Owning lands and real estate necessary for establishing its entities and equipment.

Importing and exporting chemicals necessary for the execution of the works stated above.

Concluding agreements and obtaining privileges which it deems necessary for the achieving its objectives.
Possessing the required patents, and trademarks.

Obtaining and granting agencies in respect of the Parent Company’s business operations.

Conducting studies, queries and researches relevant to the Parent Company’s primary objectives.

The Parent Company may carry out all of the above-mentioned activities inside the State of Kuwait or abroad. The
Parent Company may also have an interest or participate in any way with entities practicing activities similar to its
own or which may assist it in achieving its objectives inside the State of Kuwait or abroad, or may acquire those
entities or affiliated itself with them.

Information on the Group’s structure is provided in Note 2.2.
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for investment securities
that are measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”), which is also the functional
currency of the Parent Company.

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. Certain
comparative information has been reclassified and re-presented to conform to the classification in the current
period. Such reclassification has been made to improve the quality of information presented.

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
(investees which are controlled by the Group) as at 31 December 2020. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the statement of comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements include the following subsidiaries:

% equity
interest
Country of
Entity Principal activities incorporation 2020 2019
Directly held
Napesco International
Petroleum Services S.P.C. Drilling & maintenance of oil wells and
(“Napesco International’) chemical waste management Kuwait 100 100
Indirectly held through
Napesco International
Support activities for petroleum and natural
Napesco India LLP gas mining incidental to onshore and
(“Napesco India”) offshore oil & gas extraction. India 99.99 99.99

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

In 2019, the Group acquired an additional 20% interest in Napesco India, increasing its ownership from 79.99%
t0 99.99%. The carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net assets in the Group’s consolidated financial statements on
the date of the acquisition was as follows:

KD
Carrying amount of NCI acquired 40,136
Consideration paid to NCI (44,403)

A decrease in equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company (4,267)
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National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New and amended standards and interpretations

The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist without including all of
the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but may impact future periods should the Group enter into any business combinations.

Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and IAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number
of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A
hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of
benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument. These amendments have no impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
primary users. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of, nor is there expected
to be any future impact to the Group.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on 29 March 2018

The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist the IASB in developing
standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies where there is no applicable standard in place
and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards. This will affect those entities which developed
their accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework includes some
new concepts, updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies some important
concepts. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases. The
amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect
not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes
this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same
way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not a lease modification. The amendment
applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. Earlier application is permitted. This
amendment had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is primarily in the business of providing various oilfields (i.e. cementing, simulations services) and
non-oilfields services (i.e. health and safety services). Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that
it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring
them to the customer.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on the delivery of goods at the customer’s location.

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g. volume rebates). In determining the transaction
price for the sale of goods, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant
financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Group also provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers
once the quantity of goods purchased during the period exceeds the threshold specified in the contract. Volume
rebates give rise to variable consideration.

Rendering of services

The Group provides various services that are either sold separately or bundled together with the sale of goods to a
customer. Using significant judgement, the Group considers the degree of customisation, integration and
interdependency of the related goods and services when assessing distinct performance obligations within one
contract.

Stand-alone selling price (“SSP”) for each distinct performance obligation is generally determined using the price
at which the goods and services would be sold separately to the customer. Discounts, when provided, are allocated
based on the relative SSP of the various goods and services.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts of ‘sale of services’ or ‘bundled sale of goods and services contracts
that are viewed as a single performance obligation’ over time using an output method in measuring progress,
generally based on cost-to-cost measure of progress because it faithfully depicts the Group’s performance towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

The Group elected to apply the ‘right to invoice’ practical expedient for contracts that contain fixed amounts and
rates for manpower and materials specified in a contract, when the Group determines that right to consideration
from a customer corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s performance completed to date.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from sale of services because the receipt of consideration
is conditional on successful completion of the services. Upon completion of the services and acceptance by the
customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to expected credit losses assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of
financial assets in section 3.9 Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional is due from the customer (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in section 3.9 Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

3.2 Taxation

Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The Parent Company calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% in accordance with the modified calculation based
on the Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that the income from shareholding associates and
subsidiaries, Board of Directors’ remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the
year when determining the contribution.

National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

The Parent Company calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Ministry of Finance
Resolutions No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the year. As per law, income from associates and
subsidiaries, cash dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST have been deducted from the
profit for the year.

Zakat
Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Parent Company in accordance with the Ministry of
Finance resolution No. 58/2007.

Taxation on overseas subsidiaries

Taxation on overseas subsidiaries is calculated on the basis of the tax rates applicable and prescribed according to
the prevailing laws, regulations and instructions of the countries where these subsidiaries operate. Income tax
payable on taxable profit (‘current tax’) is recognized as an expense in the year in which the profits arise in
accordance with the fiscal regulations of the respective countries in which the Group operates.

3.3 Property, plant and equipment

Construction in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any. Plant and equipment is
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings on leasehold land 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
(i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

3.4  Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership
of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term of assets.
Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 3.6 Impairment of non-
financial assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is
a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

3.5 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value after providing allowances for any obsolete or
slow-moving items. Costs comprise direct materials and where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a
weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the costs of completion

and selling expenses. Write-down is made for obsolete and slow-moving items based on their expected future use
and net realisable value.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is only reversed
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand, non-restricted cash at
banks, cash held in investment portfolios and short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or
less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

3.8 Term deposits
Term deposits represent deposits with banks due within three months or more from the placement date and eamn
interest.

3.9 Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the
Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model.

LY National Petroleum Services Co. (K.S.C.P)

National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
39 Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
i) Financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified
or impaired.

b) Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCIL. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

(] Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.

d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes certain equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair

value through OCI. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
i) Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

ii) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value (transaction price) plus, directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise lease liabilities and trade and other payables.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of accounts payable, net of directly

attributable transaction costs. Refer to the accounting policy on leases for the initial recognition and measurement
of lease liabilities, as this is not in the scope of IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.9 Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
ii) Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss and financial liabilities
at amortised cost is more relevant to the Group.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Accounts payable and accruals
Accounts payable and accruals are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for services received, whether
billed by the supplier or not.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

iii)  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.10 Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group and
not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this method, the
weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged in equity. When the treasury shares are reissued, gains
are credited to a separate account in equity (the “treasury shares reserve”), which is not distributable. Any realised
losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance in that account. Any excess losses are
charged to retained earnings then to the voluntary reserve and statutory reserve. Gains realised subsequently on
the sale of treasury shares are first used to offset any previously recorded losses in the order of reserves, retained
earnings and the treasury shares reserve account. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of bonus
shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without
affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

3.11 Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to all its employees under the Kuwait Labour Law. The entitlement to
these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a
minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

Further, with respect to its national employees, the Group also makes contributions to Public Institution for Social
Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Provisions (continued)

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.13 Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in KD, which is also the Parent Company’s functional
currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of
consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation, the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the
amount that arises from using this method.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part
of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the
date of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Kuwaiti Dinar at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are
recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign
operation is reclassified in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

3.14 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.15 Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it earns
revenue and incurs costs. The operating segments are used by the management of the Group to allocate resources
and assess performance. Operating segments exhibiting similar economic characteristics, product and services,
class of customers, distribution methods and nature of regulatory environment where appropriate are aggregated
and reported as reportable segments.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

3.17 Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset. When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at
nominal amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of
consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

3.18 Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the reporting period, but prior to the date of authorisation for issue, about
conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the Group will assess if the information affects the
amounts that it recognises in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The Group will adjust the amounts
recognised in its consolidated financial statements to reflect any adjusting events after the reporting period and
update the disclosures that relate to those conditions in the light of the new information. For non-adjusting events
after the reporting period, the Group will not change the amounts recognised in its consolidated financial statements
but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that
such an estimate cannot be made, if applicable.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements require management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about the assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the amount of the asset or liability affected in the
future periods.

4.1 Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification of financial assets

The Group determines the classification of financial assets based on the assessment of the business model within
which the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(continued)

4.1 Judgements (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognising revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the
consolidated entity is considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be
the time that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the
Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control
and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., a change in business
strategy, construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset).

4.2 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are also described in the individual notes of the related financial statement line items below.
The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in
the assumptions when they occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 27.1.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may change
the utility of certain software and IT equipment.

Fair value measurement

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market
quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market
participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible,
but this is not always available. In that case, management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values
may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(continued)
4.2 Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Provision for impairment of inventories

The provision for impairment of inventories assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. The level
of the provision is assessed by taking into account the recent sales experience, the ageing of inventories and other
factors that affect inventory obsolescence.

Determination of variable consideration

Judgement is exercised in estimating variable consideration which is determined having regard to past experience
with respect to the goods returned to the consolidated entity where the customer maintains a right of return pursuant
to the customer contract or where goods or services have a variable component. Revenue will only be recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
under the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would
have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buildingona  Plantand  Furniture and Motor
leasehold land* machinery fixtures vehicles Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Cost
As at 1 January 2020 2,827,278 26,482,856 654,246 424,283 30,388,663
Additions - 1,021,241 7,981 125,120 1,154,342
Disposals - - (8,134) (79,140) (87,274)
At 31 December 2020 2,827,278 27,504,097 654,093 470,263 31,455,731
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2020 1,881,921 16,331,506 628,767 361,262 19,203,456
Charge for the year 120,046 1,940,471 24,290 40,182 2,124,989
Relating to disposals - - (8,134) (79,140) (87,274)
At 31 December 2020 2,001,967 18,271,977 644,923 322,304 21,241,171
Net book value:
At 31 December 2020 825,311 9,232,120 9,170 147,959 10,214,560
Building on a Plant and Furniture and Motor
leasehold land*  machinery fixtures vehicles Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Cost
As at 1 January 2019 2,827,278 25,563,366 644,395 457,134 29,492,173
Additions - 964,728 16,367 77,525 1,058,620
Disposals - (45,238) (6,516) (110,376) (162,130)
At 31 December 2019 2,827,278 26,482,856 654,246 424,283 30,388,663
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2019 1,759,937 14,531,009 604,288 432,328 17,327,562
Charge for the year 121,984 1,840,508 30,995 39,310 2,032,797
Relating to disposals - (40,011) (6,516) (110,376) (156,903)
At 31 December 2019 1,881,921 16,331,506 628,767 361,262 19,203,456
Net book value:
At 31 December 2019 945,357 10,151,350 25,479 63,021 11,185,207

* The Group's building is constructed on a leasehold land granted by the Public Authority of Industry (PAI),
which will expire on 5 July 2023. Management believes that it is reasonably certain to renew the lease for a
similar term of 5 years.

Depreciation included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss is allocated, as follows:

2020 2019

KD KD
Cost of sales and services rendered 2,094,795 2,006,610
General and administrative expenses (Note 22) 30,194 26,187

2,124,989 2,032,797
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Disposals of property, plant and equipment

In 2020, the Group disposed equipment with a total net carrying amount of KD Nil (2019: KD 5,227) for a cash
consideration of KD 24,045 (2019: KD 24,550). The resultant gain on disposal amounting to KD 24,045 (2019:
KD 19,323) was recognised as part of other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended.

6 INVENTORIES

2020 2019
KD KD
Cement and acidizing chemicals 3,802,207 2,781,102
Spare parts and tools 1,220,613 1,162,408
5,022,820 3,943,510

During 2020, KD 6,617,568 (2019: KD 6,756,372) was recognised as an expense for inventories. This is
recognised in ‘cost of sales and services rendered’.

7 GOVERNMENT GRANT

In an attempt to mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Government of Kuwait has introduced
measures to aid private entities. These measures include government assistance made towards national workforce
in the private sector for a period of up to six months effective from April 2020.

During the year, the Parent Company has received financial support amounting to KD 428,287, which is accounted
for in accordance with IAS 20 ‘Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures of Government Assistance’
and is recognised in profit or loss as a deduction to ‘staff costs’ on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises expenses for the related staff costs.

The allocation of Government grant to staff costs included under ‘Cost of sales and services rendered’ and ‘General
and administrative expenses’ is as follows:

2020

KD
Cost of sales and services rendered 387,674
General and administrative expenses 40,613

428,287
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8 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS

2020 2019
KD KD
Trade receivables 12,320,500 10,422,900
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables (204,470) (98,464)
12,116,030 10,324,436
Contract assets 2,182,814 1,163,315
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses on contract assets (1,536) (1,536)
2,181,278 1,161,779
Trade receivables and contract assets 14,297,308 11,486,215

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 60 to 90 days.

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the
reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. This
usually occurs when the Group issues an invoice to the customer.

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets:

2020 2019

KD KD
As at 1 January 100,000 40,000
Charge for the year 106,006 60,000
As at 31 December 206,006 100,000

The charge for the year has been included within general and administrative expenses (Note 22).
Information about the credit exposures are disclosed in Note 27.1

9 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2020 2019
KD KD
Advance payments to suppliers 1,913,828 1,092,467
Staff receivables 384,605 407,512
Deposits and other receivables 612,028 220,433
2,910,461 1,720,412

The net carrying value of other receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value. Other classes
within accounts receivable do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivables
mentioned above.
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10 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019
KD KD
Financial assets held for trading:
Quoted equity securities - 27,658
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss:
Managed funds and other securities 936,073 1,055,658
936,073 1,083,316

The hierarchy of determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instrument by valuation techniques is
presented in Note 28.

11 TERM DEPOSITS

Term deposits represents deposit with a local bank with original maturity of more than three months but less than one
year from the date of placement and earn interest an average rate of 2.3% per annum (2019: 2.8% per annum).

12 BANK BALANCES AND CASH

2020 2019
KD KD
Cash on hand 6,907 12,946
Cash at banks 2,033,530 2,508,834
2,040,437 2,521,780

13 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised, issued and fully

Number of shares paid
2020 2019 2020 2019
KD KD
Shares of 100 fils each (paid in cash) 100,000,000 100,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000

14 SHARE PREMIUM

This represents the difference between the nominal value of the shares issued and the subscription or issue price.
The reserve is not available for distribution except in cases stipulated by the Companies Law.

15 TREASURY SHARES

2020 2019
Number of treasury shares 3,000,000 3,000,000
Percentage of issued shares (%) 3.00% 3.00%
Market value (KD) 3,147,000 3,510,000
Cost (KD) 654,461 654,461

Reserves equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares held are not available for distribution throughout the holding
period of treasury shares as per CMA guidelines.
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16 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, a minimum of 10% of the profit for the year before tax and directors’ remuneration shall be
transferred to the statutory reserve based on the recommendation of the Parent Company’s board of directors. The
annual general assembly of the Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such transfer when the reserve exceeds
50% of the issued share capital. The reserve may only be used to offset losses or enable the payment of a dividend
up to 5% of paid-up share capital in years when profit is not sufficient for the payment of such dividend due to
absence of distributable reserves. Any amounts deducted from the reserve shall be refunded when the profits in
the following years suffice, unless such reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital.

The shareholders of the Parent Company at the annual general assembly (AGM) held on 28 March 2019 resolved
to discontinue transfers to the statutory reserve.

17 VOLUNTARY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, a maximum of 10% of the profit for the year before tax and directors’ remuneration is required to
be transferred to the voluntary reserve. Such annual transfers may be discontinued by a resolution of the
shareholders’ general assembly upon a recommendation by the Board of Directors. There are no restrictions on
the distribution of this reserve.

The shareholders of the Parent Company at the annual general assembly (AGM) held on 28 March 2019 resolved
to discontinue transfers to the voluntary reserve.

18 EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

Set out below is the movement in the provision for employees’ end of service benefits during the year:

2020 2019

KD KD
As at 1 January 2,626,535 2,239,794
Charge for the year 461,658 496,750
Payments (171,653) (110,009)
As at 31 December 2,916,540 2,626,535
19 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

2020 2019

KD KD
Trade payables 782,288 449,403
Dividends payable 183,444 67,292
Accrued staff costs 1,040,273 1,585,368
Advances received from client 356,655 356,655
Taxes payable 312,048 562,091
Accrued directors’ remuneration 100,000 180,000
Other accrued expenses and provisions 1,985,638 1,263,030

4,760,346 4,463,839

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms of 60 to 90 days.

Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months

For explanations on the Group’s liquidity risk management processes, refer to Note 27.2.
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20  SALES AND SERVICES REVENUE

20.1 Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s sales and services revenue:

2020 2019

KD KD
Type of goods or services
Oil field contracts
Pumping services 19,578,154 27,017,382
Non-oil field contracts
Health, safety, environment and man-power supply services 5,980,011 6,532,860
Other services 1,197,165 1,608,285
Total sales and services revenue 26,755,330 35,158,527
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 1,324,609 1,172,022
Goods and services transferred over time 25,430,721 33,986,505
Total sales and services revenue 26,755,330 35,158,527
The majority of the revenue is generated in the State of Kuwait.
20.2 Contract balances

2020 2019

KD KD
Trade receivables (Note 8) 12,116,030 10,324,436
Contract assets (Note 8) 2,181,278 1,161,779
21 NET INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS)

2020 2019

KD KD
Dividend income 31,272 100,671
Realised gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 9,059 11,710
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (4,692) (280,624)

35,639 (168,243)
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

27.1 Credit risk (continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements
The Group does not have any collateral or other credit enhancements against any of the financial assets at
31 December 2020 and 2019.

Concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic
location. The Group’s concentration of credit risk pertains to receivable balances from the Group’s 5 largest
customers which account for 98% of outstanding trade receivables at 31 December 2020 (2019: 97%).

The Group predominantly transacts with government entities. The Group considers its customers to have low credit
risk as credit risk ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies is equivalent to the globally understood
definition of ‘investment grade’ (i.e. Baa2/ BBB and above).

Trade receivables and contract assets

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to contract assets as low, as it deals with high profile
customers.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade receivables and contract
assets relating to contracts using a provision matrix:

Trade receivables and contract assets

Contract 91-180
assets Current <90 days days >180 days Total
KD KD KD KD KD KD

2020
Expected credit loss rate 0.07% 0.49% 0.93% 1.25% 3.33%
Estimated gross carrying

amount at default 2,182,814 2,354,696 3,240,301 2,933,777 3,791,726 14,503,314
Estimated credit loss (1,536) (11,504) (30,137) (36,644)  (126,185)  (206,006)
Net amount 2,181,278 2,343,192 3,210,164 2,897,133 3,665,541 14,297,308
2019
Expected credit loss rate 0.13% 0.13% 1.63% 1.90% 3.31%
Estimated gross carrying

amount at default 1,163,315 6,409,121 1,225,857 1,579,498 1,208,424 11,586,215
Estimated credit loss (1,536) (8,464) (20,000) (30,000) (40,000)  (100,000)

1,161,779 6,400,657 1,205,857 1,549,498 1,168,424 11,486,215
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

27.1 Credit risk (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is limited because the counterparties are reputable
financial institutions with appropriate credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Further, the
principal amounts of deposits in local banks (including saving accounts and current accounts) are guaranteed by
the Central Bank of Kuwait in accordance with Law No. 30 of 2008 Concerning Guarantee of Deposits at Local
Banks in the State of Kuwait which came into effect on 3 November 2008.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based
on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

Other receivables

Other receivables are considered to have a low risk of default and management believes that the counterparties
have a strong capacity to meet contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. As a result, the impact of applying
the expected credit risk model at the reporting date was immaterial.

27.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet liabilities when they fall due. Liquidity risk can be
caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up immediately.
To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind and
monitors liquidity on a daily basis. The Group’s credit sales require amounts to be paid within 60 days of the date of
invoice and trade payables are normally settled within 60 to 90 days from the date of purchase.

The table below summarises the maturities of the Group’s undiscounted financial liabilities at 31 December based on
contractual payment dates.

Less than 3to12 More than
31 December 2020 3 months months 12 months Total
KD KD KD KD

Accounts payable and accruals (excluding

advances received from client) 781,928 3,621,763 - 4,403,691
Lease liabilities 91,375 207,177 165,333 463,885
31 December 2019
Accounts payable and accruals (excluding

advances received from client) 3,451,026 656,158 - 4,107,184
Lease liabilities 61,831 185,492 149,282 396,605

27.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market variables such as
interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and equity prices, whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all investments traded in the market. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include managed funds.

Market risk is managed on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across various asset categories,

diversification of assets in terms of geographical distribution and industry concentration, a continuous appraisal of
market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short-term changes in fair value.
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

27.3 Market risk (continued)

27.3.1 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Group to interest rate risk, consist principally of cash and cash
equivalents and term deposits. The Group’s terms deposits are short-term in nature and yield interest at commercial
rates. Therefore, the Group believes there is minimal risk of significant losses due to interest rate fluctuations.

As at the reporting date, the Group does not hold interest bearing liabilities.

27.3.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group incurs foreign currency risk on transactions denominated in a
currency other than the KD. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily
to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Group’s
net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not use financial derivatives to manage its exposure to currency risk. The Group manages
its foreign currency risk based on the limits determined by management and a continuous assessment of the
Group’s open positions, current and expected exchange rate movements. The Group ensures that its net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by dealing in currencies that do not fluctuate significantly against the KD.

Exposure to currency risk

The Group incurs foreign currency risk on purchases and certain assets and liabilities that are denominated in a
currency other than Kuwaiti Dinar. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily US Dollar. At the reporting
date, the Group’s net exposure in foreign currency in US Dollar is KD 1,269,709 (2019: KD 1,917,338).

Foreign exchange rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other
variables constant.

Effect on profit
Change in
exchange rate 2020 2019
Currency KD KD
US Dollars 5% 63,485 95,867

27.3.3 Equity price risk

The Group’s listed and non-listed equity investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties
about future values of the investment securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification
and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to
the Group’s senior managementon a regular basis. The Group’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity
investment decisions.

At the reporting date, the exposure to non-listed investments at fair value was KD 936,073 (2019: KD 1,055,658).

At the reporting date, the exposure to equity investments at fair value listed on Kuwait Stock Exchange (“Boursa
Kuwait”) was KD Nil (2019: KD 27,658). Given that the changes in fair values of the equity investments held are
strongly positively correlated with changes of the Boursa Kuwait market index, the Group has determined that an
increase/(decrease) of 10% on the Boursa Kuwait market index could have an impact of approximately KD Nil
(2019: KD 3,052) increase/(decrease) on the income and equity attributable to the Group.
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28 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to
the previous reporting period.

Valuation methods and assumptions
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Listed investment in equity securities
Fair values of publicly traded equity securities are based on quoted market prices in an active market for identical
assets without any adjustments. The Group classifies the fair value of these investments as Level 1 of the hierarchy.

Unlisted managed funds

The Group invests in managed funds which are not quoted in an active market and which may be subject to
restrictions on redemptions such as lock up periods. The management considers the valuation techniques and inputs
used in valuing these funds as part of its due diligence prior to investing, to ensure they are reasonable and
appropriate. Therefore, the NAV of these investee funds may be used as an input into measuring their fair value.
In measuring this fair value, the NAV of the funds is adjusted, as necessary, to reflect restrictions on redemptions,
future commitments, and other specific factors of the investee fund and fund manager. The Group classifies these
funds as Level 3.
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Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices  Significant

in active unobservable
markets inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 3)
31 December 2020 KD KD KD
Assets measured at fair value:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Managed funds and other securities 936,073 - 936,073
Investment securities (at fair value) 936,073 - 936,073
31 December 2019
Assets measured at fair value:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted equity securities 27,658 27,658 -
Managed funds and other securities 1,055,658 - 1,055,658
Investment securities (at fair value) 1,083,316 27,658 1,055,658

There were no transfers between any levels of the fair value hierarchy during 2020 or 2019.

Other financial assets and liabilities
For all other financial assets and liabilities, the carrying value is an approximation of fair value, including: trade
and other receivables; cash and cash equivalents; trade and other payables.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 3 fair
values:

2020 2019

KD KD
As at 1 January 1,055,658 2,195,921
Remeasurement recognised in profit or loss 6,962 (266,458)
Purchases / sales (net) (126,547) (873,805)
As at 31 December 936,073 1,055,658

The impact on the consolidated statement of financial position or the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income would be immaterial if the relevant risk variables used to fair value the funds were altered by 5%.
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29 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. Capital represents equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company
and is measured at KD 40,229,892 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: KD 40,752,759).

30 DISTRIBUTIONS MADE AND PROPOSED

2020 2019
KD KD
Cash dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for 2019: 70 fils per share (2018: 70 fils per share) 6,790,000 6,790,000
Proposed dividends on ordinary shares:
Proposed cash dividend for 2020:  (2019: 70 fils per share) - 6,790,000

Proposed dividends on ordinary shares are subject to approval at the annual general assembly meeting and are not
recognised as a liability as at 31 December.

31 IMPACT OF COVID-19 OUTBREAK

The coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic has spread across various geographies globally, causing disruption to
business and economic activities. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, economic uncertainties
have arisen. The existing and anticipated effects of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the economy is expected to continue
to evolve.

The fiscal and monetary authorities, both domestic and international, have announced various support measures
across the globe to counter possible adverse implications. Due to unprecedented and widespread disruption of
business operations worldwide, lack of demand and consumption and preventive measures taken across the globe,
many of the corporates and business have been impacted negatively by COVID-19.

The Group is closely monitoring the situation and has activated its business continuity planning and other risk
management practices to manage the potential business disruption COVID-19 outbreak may have on its operational
and financial performance.

The uncertainties caused by COVID-19, and the volatility in oil prices have required the Group to update the estimates
and assumptions used for the:

- Valuation of funds at FVPL

- Impairment of property, plant and equipment
- ECL on trade and other receivables

- QGoing concern assumption.

The Group considered the potential impact of the current economic volatility on the reported amounts of the Group’s
financial and non-financial assets. The reported amounts best represent management's assessment based on
observable information. Markets, however, remain volatile and asset carrying values remain sensitive to market
fluctuations. The impact of the highly uncertain economic environment remains judgmental and the Group will
accordingly continue to reassess its position and the related impact on a regular basis.
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32 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
ofthe Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards
and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard
for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17
will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance
contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as
well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features.

A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance
contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely
based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance
contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative figures required.
Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies
IFRS 17. This standard is not applicable to the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

What is meant by a right to defer settlement

That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of
a liability not impact its classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and must be applied
retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current practice and
whether existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual
Framework. The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.

The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains
or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies,

if incurred separately.

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets that would not be
affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and apply
prospectively.
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32 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits
entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of
producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and must be applied
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the
earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to 14S 37
In May 2020, the ITASB issued amendments to IAS 37 to specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing
whether a contract is onerous or loss-making.

The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods
or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. The Group will
apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the *10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the IASB issued amendment to IFRS 9.
The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with earlier adoption
permitted. The Group will apply the amendments to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

33 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. There is no effect
of these reclassifications on the previously reported equity as at 31 December 2019 and profit for the period then
ended. Such reclassifications have been made to improve the quality of information presented.

As previously Effect of After
reported reclassification  reclassification
31 December 2019 KD KD KD
General and administrative expenses (Note 22):
Allowance for expected credit losses - 60,000 60,000
Other expenses 398,596 (60,000) 338,596
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